
IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION

Date and Time :- Tuesday, 9 July 2019 at 5.30 p.m.
Venue:- Town Hall, Moorgate Street, Rotherham.
Membership:- Councillors Atkin, Beaumont, Buckley, Clark, Cusworth 

(Chair), Elliot, Fenwick-Green, Hague, Ireland, Jarvis 
(Vice-Chair), Khan, Marles, Marriott, Pitchley, Price, 
Senior and Julie Turner

Co-opted Members – Ms. J. Jones (Voluntary Sector 
Consortium), Mrs. A. Clough (ROPF – Rotherham Older 
People’s Forum) for agenda items relating to older 
peoples’ issues

This meeting will be webcast live and will be available to view via the Council’s 
website. The items which will be discussed are described on the agenda below and 
there are reports attached which give more details.

Rotherham Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting 
should inform the Chair or Democratic Services Officer of their intentions prior to the 
meeting.

AGENDA

There will be a pre-briefing for all members of the 
Improving Lives Select Commission at 4.00 p.m.

1. Apologies for Absence 

To receive the apologies of any Member who is unable to attend the meeting.

2. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 11th June, 2019 (Pages 1 - 9)

To consider and approve the minutes of the previous meeting held on 11 June 
2019 as a true and correct record of the proceedings. 

3. Declarations of Interest 

To receive declarations of interest from Members in respect of items listed on 
the agenda.

4. Exclusion of the Press and Public 

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting 
during consideration of any part of the agenda.

 

https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


5. Questions from Members of the Public and the Press 

To receive questions relating to items of business on the agenda from 
members of the public or press who are present at the meeting.

6. Communications 

To receive communications from the Chair in respect of matters within the 
Commission’s remit and work programme.

For Discussion

7. Rotherham Safeguarding Children Partnership: Multi-Agency 
Arrangements for Safeguarding Children (Pages 10 - 49)

To consider the Rotherham Multi-Agency Arrangements for Safeguarding 
Children which will become effective from September 2019 and determine 
future arrangements for its scrutiny

8. Presentation - Children Missing from Education, Care and Home (Pages 
50 - 60)

To scrutinise the arrangements to effectively safeguard children who are 
missing from education, care or home.

For Decision

9. Improving Lives Work Programme 2019 (Pages 61 - 64)

To agree the work programme for 2019/20

10. Urgent Business 

To consider any item(s) the Chair is of the opinion should be considered as a 
matter of urgency.

11. Date and time of the next meeting 

The next meeting of the Improving Lives Select Commission take place on 17th 
September, 2019, commencing at 5.30 p.m. in Rotherham Town Hall. 

Sharon Kemp,
Chief Executive.  



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 11/06/19

IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION
11th June, 2019

Present:- Councillor Cusworth (in the Chair); Councillors Clark, Elliot, Ireland, Khan, 
Marles, Marriott, Price, Senior, Short, Atkin, Fenwick-Green and Jarvis.

Also in attendance: John Edwards, Regional Schools Commissioner (East Midlands 
and the Humber Region); Councillor Watson, Cabinet Member for Children and 
Young People’s Services; Pepe Di’Lasio, Assistant Director for Education; Ailsa Barr, 
Acting Assistant Director for Children’s Safeguarding; Sue Wilson, Head of Service, 
Performance and Planning and Anne Hawke, Performance Assurance Manager 
Early Help.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Beaumont and Hague. 

The webcast of the Council Meeting can be viewed at:- 
https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

1.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.

2.   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS 

There were no questions from members of the public and the press.

3.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 16 APRIL 2019 

Resolved:-That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Improving 
Lives Select Commission, held on 16th April 2019, be approved as a 
correct record for signature by the Chair.

4.   COMMUNICATIONS 

The Chair welcomed Members to the first meeting of the Committee and 
placed on record her thanks to Cllr Amy Brookes for her work as Vice-
Chair in the previous municipal year.

Members were informed that a work planning had been organised on 
Tuesday 18 June from 2.00-4.0pm. Members were invited to submit 
suggestions should they be unable to attend. 

Corporate Parenting Panel (CPP)
The Chair reported that a Sub-Group had commenced a review of the 
Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) process which was nearing 
conclusion.  Feedback would be provided to a future meeting of the 
Corporate Parenting Panel.

Page 1 Agenda Item 2

https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 11/06/19

5.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Chair advised that there were no items of business on the agenda 
that would require the exclusion of the press or public from the meeting.

6.   REGIONAL SCHOOLS COMMISSIONER (EAST MIDLANDS AND THE 
HUMBER REGION) - MR JOHN EDWARDS 

The Chair welcomed Mr John Edwards, Regional Schools Commissioner 
(East Midlands and the Humber Region) to the meeting.

Mr Edwards gave a brief introduction to his role and responsibilities. The 
Commissioner’s region covered 17 local authority areas. There were eight 
Regional Schools Commissioners working to a National Commissioner, 
and were accountable to the relevant Ministers for delivery of Ministerial 
priorities.

As Senior Civil Servants, the Commissioners had certain delegated 
decision making powers on behalf of the Secretary of State in relation to 
academies. These included identifying sponsors for inadequate 
maintained schools; making changes to academies and the formation of 
Multi-Academy Trusts; working with Local Authorities, Diocese and other 
related partners; making decisions on Free Schools and overseeing the 
‘school improvement offer’ for those trusts who met the criteria.

Academies were educational charities, funded directly by Government to 
deliver education and regulated by Ofsted. The Commissioners work with 
academies to ensure that they are underpinned by sound governance and 
finance to deliver good educational outcomes. Within the region, the 
Commissioner outlined that there were 1285 Academies; with more than 
170 Multi-Academy Trusts (MATs) and a similar number of single 
academy trusts. His teams worked with the academies to support and 
challenge improvements. 

Through academies a school-led system of improvement was developing, 
supporting those schools were progress was needed to be made and 
sustaining good outcomes for schools which were successful. As part of a 
trust, schools could access specific support improvement support, 
including specialist assistance with maths and English and school 
leadership. Examples were given of specialist hubs and teaching schools 
based in Rotherham. 

Focusing on Rotherham, the Commissioner highlighted that 65% of all 
Primary Schools were academies, working in single or MATs. All but one 
of Rotherham Secondary Schools were academies. Most of the large 
trusts were based within the area and whilst this brought benefits of 
building capacity within the borough, there was a challenge to ensure that 
good practice from elsewhere was shared to support improvements. 

Page 2



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 11/06/19

It was noted that Rotherham outcomes had not kept pace with 
improvements that had taken place nationally. The Commissioner gave a 
commitment to work with trusts and individual schools within the Borough 
to drive improvement and leadership.

In response to a question about the rising numbers of children who were 
being elective home educated (“home schooled”) and comparisons with 
the national picture, the Commissioner outlined that the Government has 
recently commissioned the “Timpson Review” which had looked at a 
range of issues, including exclusions, elective home education and 
children missing from education and would consult on proposals in due 
course. The Assistant Director for Education clarified that data was 
available and work was underway to analyse trends and good practice 
which would be submitted to a future meeting of the Committee. 
Responsibility for the safeguarding of children who were home education 
remained with local authority.

Clarification was sought on the work underway regionally and nationally to 
support schools which had larger numbers of newly-arrived pupils, 
particularly those who join the school roll after the standard transfer date 
and the challenge of working with transient populations. It was observed 
that there were some local authorities in the Commissioner’s region which 
were facing greater challenges in this respect. The Local Authority had a 
responsibility to secure a school place and trusts and maintained schools 
had a responsibility to ensure the student can transition into the provision. 
There was a range of approaches adopted by trusts and maintained 
schools across the region to mitigate the impact, this included school 
liaison and language acquisition support, use of the pupil premium, 
sessions to familiarise students and families with the UK school system 
and specific pastoral support for children with additional vulnerabilities. 
The funding allocation was based on a number of criteria and provided a 
predictable platform for resources. The expectation therefore was that 
school leaders would use the funding allocated to meet the needs of its 
pupils accordingly.

The Commissioner was asked to outline how good practice was shared 
between schools and trusts around the region. It was stated that this was 
done through a variety of means, including a formal accreditation process, 
bringing together national leaders of education, research-based schools in 
addition to the teaching schools, hubs and funded school improvement 
offer cited earlier. Many local areas have education partnerships providing 
formal brokerage and informal networks and there was an expectation 
that school leaders would share good practice amongst themselves. 

Views were sought from the Commissioner on how well Rotherham 
shared good practice and the level of collaboration between the local 
authority and trusts. The Commissioner outlined that he had been 
appraised of the Rotherham Education Strategic Partnership (RESP) by 
the Strategic Director and Assistant Director and had offered thoughts on 
its development. He observed that Rotherham had strong teaching 

Page 3



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 11/06/19

schools in the Borough, leading school improvement, training teachers 
and reaching out to other schools in the area. He perceived that there was 
a commitment that the Local Authority would drive a strategic partnership 
and willingness for trusts to engage in this.

Further details were sought on improving educational outcomes, in 
particular if the Local Authority recognised the challenge and if it had a 
grip on what improvements were required. The Commissioner stated that 
there was recognition from senior officers and an ambition to make 
necessary improvements. In working with trusts, the Commissioner issues 
challenge to improve outcomes at all levels. He observed that coming 
together in a local area could identify were problems arise and draw on 
good practice to address concerns accordingly.

RESOLVED:

1) That the Regional School Commissioner be thanked for his 
presentation

2) That a report be submitted by the Assistant Director for Education on 
elective home education to a future meeting. 

7.   ROTHERHAM EDUCATION STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP (RESP) 
UPDATE 

The Assistant Director for Education gave an update of the key priorities 
identified by RESP and progress in meeting these.

The Rotherham Education Strategic Partnership (RESP) was established 
in 2018 following the Enabling School Improvement consultation. The first 
meeting was held on 24th October 2018 and the board have been 
meeting half termly. 

RESP has brought together key partners from across Rotherham’s 
education system enabling the work of key partners to be brought 
together into a coherent and effective strategic plan communicated 
through the partnership. It aimed to maximise outcomes and improve life 
chances for children and young people, promote inclusion and reduce 
inequalities, to ensure that no school and no child or young person was 
left behind.

Previously there was an absence of a strategic body which held an 
overview of all educational partners and priorities. This had been brought 
together under RESP which aims to ensure that the life of every child and 
young person is enhanced to the full by the provision of first class 
education.

Page 4



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 11/06/19

The priority areas were as follows: Special Educational Needs and 
Disability (SEND); Gypsy, Roma and Traveller (GRT), Early Years, 
Primary, Secondary, Post 16 and Social, Emotional and Mental Health 
(SEMH). Actions and progress against these areas were detailed in the 
report.

The Assistant Director observed that whilst a relatively a new partnership, 
progress had been made, with good levels of collaboration and co-
construction of policy between the Local Authority and educational 
provision in Rotherham.

Clarification was sought on the support available to children with special 
needs or disabilities or other vulnerabilities and how more able pupils 
were supported. The Assistant Director stated that it was the vision of the 
authority to ensure that no child was disadvantaged. The focus on SEND 
was to address the lack of sufficiency in provision.

Reference was made in the report of concerns about the traded offer; 
details were asked to establish what has been done to address these. 
The local authority has a number of traded services which schools can 
buy into. However there is a lack of clarity about what is a statutory 
obligation or traded. A key priority for next year will be to differentiate 
between what the local authority has to do and what schools want us to 
do which will be traded.

Further explanation was asked about dual funding and the responsibility 
of host schools to give a child sense of belonging to their community. It 
was outlined that some students attended alternative provision, which 
may be outside their local community. The host school had responsibility 
for funding this provision to ensure that the links between the pupil and 
host school was maintained. Whilst ever students were in alternative 
provision, Aspire, the pupil referral unit, worked therapeutically to address 
students’ needs and maintain and build links.

In response to a question about home visiting in relation to disadvantaged 
2 years old, the Assistant Director outlined that a successful bid in 
conjunction with South Yorkshire Futures and neighbouring authorities 
had been achieved, focusing on areas with low take-up. The bid would 
target families who were less likely to engage. Details of the evaluation 
and monitoring reports would be submitted to the committee.

Assurance was sought about elective home education (EHE) and how this 
was monitored. Each EHE families were visited to check on home 
provision, however as numbers of families opting for EHE were 
increasing, this was proving challenging. A further question was asked to 
establish if there were any concerns about provision of EHE in 
households were English was not the first language; it was established 
that the issue had not been raised as a concern.

Page 5



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 11/06/19

In respect to concerns raised about school funding, the Assistant Director 
has made representations to Government about funding options being 
applied from the date a child from a transient community joins a school 
rather than being determined from ‘census date’. There has been positive 
engagement on this issue.

Reference was made to a previous report to the Committee (2018 
Education Performance Outcomes, Minute 34) were actions to boost the 
attainment of more able pupils were reported as a priority. It was noted 
however these actions were not referenced in the current report submitted 
to the Committee for consideration. The RESP priorities had been set 
prior to the Education Outcomes being published. Assurance was given 
that the attainment of more able pupils would feature as a strategic priority 
for RESP for next year. It was stated that individual schools and trusts 
would be addressing the needs of high performing and more able pupils in 
their own plans and targets.

Clarification was sought on how the progress and attainment of pupils 
attending academies who do not buy into the school traded offer is 
ensured. The Assistant Director cited the long-standing relationships with 
Rotherham schools and growing levels of positive collaboration. In 
respect of those academies which were not fully engaged, the Assistant 
Director met regularly with the Department for Education (through the 
Regional School Commissioner) and worked closely with the academy 
Chief Executives to ensure there was progress and concerns flagged 
appropriately. 

Further details were asked about how the Committee could hold the 
Assistant Director and RESP to account for performance, particularly in 
respect of key milestones and a demonstration of effectiveness. The 
Assistant Director outlined that the annual performance outcomes report, 
which will be submitted to the Committee, would provide a vehicle for this 
enquiry

Reference was made to the number of abbreviations and acronyms in the 
report. It was asked that in future reports that acronyms/abbreviations be 
explained appropriately.

RESOLVED:

1) That the evaluation of the Early Years Home Visiting Project be 
submitted to this Committee

2) That a report detailing key timelines, milestones and outcomes to 
reflect the difference that RESP is making be submitted to this Committee 
in December 2019.

3) That the above report has details the actions taken to boost the 
performance of high performing and more able pupils.

Page 6



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 11/06/19

8.   CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICES (CYPS) 2018/2019 YEAR 
END PERFORMANCE 

The Acting Assistant Director for Children’s Safeguarding provided a 
summary of performance under key themes for Children’s and Young 
Peoples Service at the end of the 2018/19 reporting year. The report 
detailed performance in relation to: early help and family engagement; 
children’s social care; education and inclusion.

The Acting Assistant Director gave a brief presentation to the report which 
outlined areas which were working well; areas of concerns and actions to 
address these. 

What’s Working Well 
 Timeliness of engagement with families in Early Help improved from 

59.7% to 72.6%
 97.2% people who completed the Early Help exit survey during the 

year rated the service as good or excellent
 Timeliness of Early Help Assessments has improved from 47% to 

62.9%
 The number of re-referrals into social care has further decreased 

during the year (23.1%  to 21.3%)
 The number of referrals going onto assessment was 98.2% reflecting 

the quality of the processes in MASH
 The overall children in need (CIN) population reduced by 295 from 

1678 to 1383 and those with an up to date plan increased from 82.8% 
to 90.5%.

 95.5% of LAC visits were undertaken in statutory timescales, some 
months 98%.

 The Ofsted focussed visit recognised the significant improvements in 
permanency planning for looked after children.

 EYFS, KS2 (for writing) were both above national average
 Significant progress has been made during the year in developing a 

performance management framework for Inclusion Services which 
includes a version of “Insight”

What are we worried about
 85.5% of Early Help contacts were triaged within 5 working days 

(against a target of 100%) *but still improved performance on the 
previous year

 46% of the families we are working with in our Families for Change 
programme achieved outcomes that lead to a Payment By Results 
(PBR) claim (871).

 The rate of Section 47 investigations continues to be high however 
they are still appropriate and the correct decision for the child

 Partners undertook 24.9% of Early Help Assessments (397) however 
only 11 of these were undertaken by Health (0.68% of the total 
number)

Page 7



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 11/06/19

 The number of children in a commissioned placement (either 
Independent Fostering Agency or Residential) increased slightly by 
1.8% from the previous year which means that children are living 
further away from Rotherham

 The overall number of Initial Health Assessments completed within 
the 20 day timescale decreased from 55.7% to 52% since the 
previous year.

 There has been a gradual decline of review health assessments 
during the year from a high of 92% to 83.7% at the end of March 
2019.

 KS1 and KS2 Reading needs to improve to close the gap to national 
average

What do we need to do next
 Continue to ensure that the right service at the right time is in place 

including work across CYPS and partners at all stages of the process 
particularly around thresholds

 Continue to embed key strategies (sufficiency, demand and market 
management) to ensure that families are supported.

 Continue to work with families to achieve improved and sustained 
outcomes to achieve the Families for Change targets

 Continue to work with partners in Health to ensure that they undertake 
a larger number of Early Help Assessments

 Continue to work with schools to improve attainment in Reading 
through the traded services offer

 Continue to strengthen performance management arrangements in 
Inclusion Services

In response to a query about persistent absence, details were given about 
a range of interventions in place to support and escalate concerns. 
Assurance was given that schools took action and raised concerns 
promptly, and these were monitored closely by the performance leads in 
Early Help and Family Engagement. 

In respect of early help assessments undertaken by partners, the service 
was asked if there were any barriers which prevented these being 
completed. Early Help leads worked closely with agencies to clarify 
process and levels of involvement and co-ordination. It was expected that 
numbers of early help assessments would increase although it was 
recognised that current levels were at a low base.

A query was raised in respect of immunisation and if there were any levels 
of concern in this area. Work was underway with health colleagues on 
how this was recorded and this would be brought back in a future report.

Page 8



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 11/06/19

Clarification was sought if the measure on customer feedback was 
focussed on those who had a positive experience of early help or if it 
included those who had been stepped up to social care or had not 
engaged. The early help assessment had been adapted to capture 
feedback on closure and the feedback form reviewed. 

The format of the performance information and the quality of the narrative 
was commended. A query was asked in relation to comparative 
information (benchmarking with other authorities) and its timeliness.  Work 
is underway with regional neighbours to draw together some comparative 
information to inform practice across other early help and social care. This 
would be shared as part of future reports.

The Chair asked for an overview of staff turnover, vacancies and 
caseloads and if there were any concerns in relation to these. Level of 
vacancies compared positively with authorities as did agency usage which 
was at a low rate. 

Assurance was given that the performance in relation to Education, Care 
and Health Plans would improve.  A query was raised in respect of Young 
People not in education, employment or training and if there was a 
detailed breakdown of the cohort. Assurance was given that this was the 
case. The Cabinet Member offered to meet with the Member to provide 
further clarification.

Clarification was sought on accessing children centres and incentives 
offered to parents. Further details would be sought from the Assistant 
Director Early Help and Family Engagement on any criteria applied. 

RESOLVED:

1) That the report and accompanying datasets (Appendices 1 & 2) be 
received and consideration be given to the issues arising.

2) That the Committee gives further consideration to its scrutiny of 
performance.

9.   URGENT BUSINESS 

The Chair advised that there was no business that should be considered 
as a matter of urgency.

10.   DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING 

Resolved:-  That a further meeting be held on Tuesday, 9th July, 2019, 
commencing at 5.30 p.m.

Page 9



Public Report
Improving Lives Select Commission

Committee Name and Date of Committee Meeting
Improving Lives Select Commission – 09 July 2019

Report Title
Rotherham Safeguarding Children Partnership: 
Multi-Agency Arrangements for Safeguarding Children

Is this a Key Decision and has it been included on the Forward Plan? 
Yes

Strategic Director Approving Submission of the Report
Jon Stonehouse, Strategic Director of Children and Young People's Services

Report Author(s)
Phil Morris, Business Manager, Rotherham LSCB
phil.morris@rotherham.gov.uk

Ward(s) Affected
Borough-Wide 

Report Summary
This report presents the Rotherham Multi-Agency Arrangements for Safeguarding 
Children. They have been developed, in accordance with statutory guidance, by the 
three safeguarding partners in consultation with the wider partnership. These 
arrangements will become effective from September 2019.

The report was endorsed by Cabinet at its meeting of 20 May 2019.

Recommendations

That Improving Lives Select Commission:

1. Notes the decision of the Cabinet to endorse the development and publication 
of the Multi-Agency Arrangements for Safeguarding Children.

2. Considers its approach to the future scrutiny of these arrangements.

List of Appendices Included

Appendix 1: Rotherham Safeguarding Children Partnership: Multi-Agency 
Arrangements for Safeguarding Children.

Page 10 Agenda Item 7



Background Papers
HM Government (2018) Working Together to Safeguard Children – a guide to inter-
agency working to safeguard and promote the welfare of children.

Consideration by any other Council Committee, Scrutiny or Advisory Panel

Cabinet 20 May 2019

Council Approval Required
No

Exempt from the Press and Public
No

Page 11



Rotherham Safeguarding Children Partnership: 
Multi-Agency Arrangements for Safeguarding Children
 
1. Background

1.1 The Children Act 2004, as amended by the Children and Social Work Act 2017, 
requires that the three safeguarding partners (Local Authorities, Clinical 
Commissioning Groups and Chief Officers of Police), make arrangements to 
work in partnership together along with relevant agencies to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of children in the area. This replaces the requirement to 
establish Local Safeguarding Children Boards under the Children Act 2004 and 
the Local Safeguarding Children Board Regulations 2006.

1.2 Working Together to Safeguard Children (2018), is the statutory guidance 
which outlines what the responsibilities of safeguarding partners are, delivered 
through the new safeguarding arrangements.  This includes a shared 
accountability between the three key partners, the requirement to have 
independent scrutiny and the transition from Serious Case Reviews to Child 
Safeguarding Practice Reviews.  

1.3 The three key partners must publish their arrangements by June 2019 and 
implementation of those arrangements must be effected by September 2019.  
Transitional guidance has also been published to set out the change from Local 
Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) to the new multi-agency arrangements for 
safeguarding children, which includes new accountability arrangements for 
Child Death Reviews and the move away from Serious Case Reviews.

1.4 The new Safeguarding Children Arrangements were presented to and 
endorsed by Council Cabinet on 20th May 2019.

2. Key Issues

2.1 The statutory guidance requires that the multi-agency safeguarding 
arrangements are implemented through a shared accountability with the three 
safeguarding partners. This is a shift away from current Local Safeguarding 
Children Board accountability which currently lies with the Chief Executive of 
the Council. This shared accountability between the three key partners is both 
welcomed and is strongly reflected in the new multi-agency safeguarding 
arrangements.  

2.2 The new safeguarding arrangements build on the strengths of the current 
partnership working in relation to safeguarding children under the auspices of 
the Local Safeguarding Children Board; and this serves to provide a firm 
foundation for continuing with the good progress which has been made in 
relation to safeguarding children and for planning new strategic priorities and 
objectives. See Appendix 1.

2.3 There is also a requirement for independent scrutiny to provide assurance in 
judging the effectiveness of multi-agency arrangements to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of all children in Rotherham. It has been agreed by the 

Page 12



safeguarding partners that this will be provided through an Independent 
chairperson.

2.4 In order to bring transparency for children, families and all practitioners about 
the safeguarding activity undertaken, the safeguarding partners will publish a 
report, at least annually, in relation to the effectiveness of the safeguarding 
arrangements in practice. 

3. Options considered and recommended proposal

3.1 The proposed safeguarding arrangements have recognised the positive 
partnership working in Rotherham in relation to safeguarding children. The final 
proposal for the arrangements, which has had a number of iterations following 
consultation, has been developed by the three safeguarding partners to build 
on the strengths of the Local Safeguarding Children Board.

4. Consultation on proposal

4.1 The proposal has extensive consultation across the partnership via the Local 
Safeguarding Children Board. The Health and Wellbeing Board, Safeguarding 
Adults Board and Safer Rotherham Partnership have also received briefings on 
the changes to statutory guidance and have been given opportunities to 
contribute to the development of the new arrangements. 

5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision

5.1 The new safeguarding arrangements will be published by 29th June 2019 and 
implemented by the 29th September 2019.

5.2 The safeguarding partners Chief Officer Group has the responsibility to ensure 
that the new arrangements are implemented and that the above timetable is 
adhered to.

6. Financial and Procurement Advice and Implications (to be written by the 
relevant Head of Finance and the Head of Procurement  on behalf of s151 
Officer)

6.1 The LSCB  in Rotherham operates within a £329k budget and is funded from 
partner contributions as outlined in the table below:

RMBC                                          185,431 
Rotherham CCG                                            75,315 
Rotherham CCG 
(training)                                            22,000 
SY Police                                            44,475 
SY Probation                                               1,077 
CAFCASS                                                  550 
Total                                          328,848 

Page 13



6.2 The £329k budget does not have a built in contingency for Serious Case 
Reviews – this is addressed as and when one arises and the key partners are 
asked to contribute to the costs.

6.3 Discussions are on-going with regards to each agencies contribution under the 
new Multi-Agency Arrangements for Safeguarding Children.

6.4 There are no procurement implications arising from this report.

7. Legal Advice and Implications (to be written by Legal Officer on behalf of 
Assistant Director Legal Services)

7.1 The new safeguarding partnership arrangements comply with Working 
Together 2018. The arrangements must be published before the end of June 
2019 and implemented before the end of September 2019. 

8. Human Resources Advice and Implications

8.1 It has been agreed that for 2019/20 the same level of resource will be provided 
to that for 2018/19 resulting in no changes to the establishment/staffing 
arrangements of the business unit for this period, therefore there are no HR 
implications.

9. Implications for Children and Young People and Vulnerable Adults

9.1 The remit of the new safeguarding arrangements are to ensure that children are 
protected from harm and their welfare promoted. Opportunities are developing 
in collaboration with the Safeguarding Adults Board to ensure that a continuum 
of safeguarding support is provided to young people transitioning into 
adulthood; and that organisations individually need to evidence their 
safeguarding responsibilities from both and children’s and adult perspective.

10. Equalities and Human Rights Advice and Implications

10.1 Inherent within safeguarding children partnership responsibilities are the duties 
to promote equalities and human rights for both children and their families.

11. Implications for Partners

11.1 The new safeguarding arrangements have been developed by the three key 
safeguarding partners in consultation with the wider partnership.

Page 14



12. Risks and Mitigation

12.1 Intrinsic to the safeguarding children arrangements are a partnership Executive 
Group to oversee the arrangements, reporting to a partnership Chief Officer 
Group twice annually.

13. Accountable Officer(s)
Jon Stonehouse, Strategic Director Children and Young People’s Services

Approvals obtained on behalf of:-

Named Officer Date
Chief Executive Click here to enter 

a date.
Strategic Director of Finance & 
Customer Services 
(S.151 Officer)

Judith Badger 26/04/19

Head of Legal Services (Deputy 
Monitoring Officer)

Bal Nahal 23/04/19

Assistant Director of Human 
Resources (if appropriate)

N/A

Head of Human Resources 
(if appropriate)

N/A

Report Author: Phil Morris, Business Manager, Rotherham LSCB
phil.morris@rotherham.gov.uk
This report is published on the Council's website. 

Page 15

https://moderngov.rotherham.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories=


1 
 

Rotherham  

Safeguarding Children Partnership 

 

 

 

 

 

Multi-Agency Arrangements  

for Safeguarding Children 

 

 

  

 

June 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 16



2 
 

Contents 

 

1. Introduction .................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Signatories ..................................................................................................................... 4 

3. Background .................................................................................................................... 5 

4. Safeguarding Partners responsibilities ........................................................................... 5 

5. Relevant agencies ......................................................................................................... 7 

6. Structure ........................................................................................................................ 8 

7. How the Safeguarding Children Partnership will work .................................................... 9 

8. Safeguarding Children Partnership membership and responsibilities ........................... 11 

9. Independent scrutiny .................................................................................................... 16 

10. Multi-agency threshold guidance for help and protection of children ......................... 17 

11. Dispute resolution, escalation and whistleblowing .................................................... 19 

12. Safeguarding Effectiveness and Assurance ............................................................. 20 

12.1 Partner organisations’ safeguarding self-assessment .......................................................... 20 

12.2 Performance Management Framework ................................................................................ 20 

12.3 Multi-Agency Auditing ........................................................................................................... 20 

13. Listening to the voice of children and families ........................................................... 21 

14. Inter-agency learning and development .................................................................... 22 

15. Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews ....................................................................... 23 

15.1 Transitional arrangements for Serious Case Reviews (SCR) ............................................... 26 

16. Review of Partnership Safeguarding Arrangements ................................................. 27 

17. Reporting .................................................................................................................. 28 

18. Funding and resourcing ............................................................................................ 29 

19. Information Sharing .................................................................................................. 29 

20. Management of Data ................................................................................................ 30 

21. Appendix 1:   Relevant Agencies .............................................................................. 31 

 

  

Page 17



3 
 

1. Introduction 

Welcome to the new Rotherham Multi-Agency Arrangements for Safeguarding Children 

which are established in accordance with the Children and Social Work Act 2017 and 

Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018.  

In this document we have set out the way in which partners in Rotherham will work together 

to identify the needs of children in Rotherham and to provide children with the help and 

protection they require. 

There have been very significant improvements in the ways in which partners work together 

to protect children in Rotherham since 2014. The three statutory partners and the wider 

partnership of local agencies and organisations within Rotherham are committed to building 

on the progress already made and to securing further improvements that will ensure that 

children and families are given help as early as possible and are protected effectively when 

they need to be. 

We will: 

 Work together and with the wider partnership to safeguard children in Rotherham 

 Ensure that the partnership demonstrates openness and transparency in all its work 

 Work with children and families to make sure our services are responsive to their 

needs 

 Keep a strong oversight of performance and safeguarding practice to provide high 

levels of assurance 

 Ensure that we allocate adequate resources and expertise to fulfil our responsibilities 

 Keep a continued focus on learning and improvement  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 18



4 
 

2. Signatories 

 

 
  

 

 
Chris Edwards, Chief Officer,  
NHS Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group 
 
 

 
 
Date: ……………………. 

  

 

 

 

 

Sharon Kemp, Chief Executive, Rotherham  
Metropolitan Borough Council 

 

           
 Date: …………………. 

 

 

 

 

Tim Forber, Assistant Chief Constable,  
South Yorkshire Police 

 
 

Date: …………………. 
 

 

  

Page 19



5 
 

3. Background 

The Children Act 2004, as amended by the Children and Social Work Act 2017, requires 

that the three safeguarding partners (Local Authorities, Clinical Commissioning Groups 

and Chief Officers of Police), make arrangements to work in partnership together along 

with relevant agencies to safeguard and promote the welfare of children in the area. 

Working Together to Safeguard Children (2018), is the statutory guidance which outlines 

what the responsibilities of safeguarding partners are, delivered through the new 

safeguarding arrangements.  This includes a shared accountability between the three 

key partners, the requirement to have independent scrutiny and the transition from 

Serious Case Reviews to Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews.   

The three key partners must publish their arrangements by June 2019 and 

implementation of those arrangements must be effected by September 2019.  

Transitional guidance has also been published to set out the change from the Local 

Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) to the new safeguarding children arrangements, 

which includes new accountability arrangements for Child Death Reviews and the move 

away from Serious Case Reviews. 

4. Safeguarding Partners responsibilities 

The safeguarding partners in Rotherham are: 

 NHS Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council 

 South Yorkshire Police 

The geographic area for which the safeguarding partners have safeguarding 

responsibilities is the Rotherham Local Authority area. The NHS services in the area 

consist of the NHS Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group, the Rotherham 

Foundation NHS Trust, and the Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humber NHS Trust. 

The Police force for the area is South Yorkshire Police. 

The plan for Rotherham recognises the importance of strong leadership for the new 

arrangements to be effective in bringing together the various organisations and agencies 

and the lead representative from each of the three safeguarding partners will play an 

active role at all levels of the new arrangements. 

Page 20



6 
 

The key responsibilities of the safeguarding partners are to: 

 Ensure that there is a shared responsibility between organisations and agencies 

to safeguard and promote the welfare of all children in a local area.  

 Agree on ways to co-ordinate their safeguarding services. 

 Act as a strategic leadership group in supporting and engaging others.  

 Implement local and national learning including from serious child safeguarding 

incidents.  

 Achieve the best possible outcomes for children and families ensuring they 

receive targeted services that meet their needs in a co-ordinated way. 

The purpose of these local arrangements is to support and enable local organisations 

and agencies to work together in a system where:  

 Children are safeguarded and their welfare promoted  

 Partner organisations and agencies collaborate, share and co-own the vision for 

how to achieve improved outcomes for vulnerable children  

 Organisations and agencies challenge appropriately and hold one another to 

account effectively  

 There is early identification and analysis of new safeguarding issues and 

emerging threats  

 Learning is promoted and embedded in a way that local services for children and 

families can become more reflective and implement changes to practice  

 Information is shared effectively to facilitate more accurate and timely decision 

making for children and families  

 

In order to work together effectively, the safeguarding partners with other local 

organisations and agencies will develop processes that:  

 Facilitate and drive action beyond usual institutional and agency constraints and 

boundaries  

Page 21



7 
 

 Ensure the effective protection of children is founded on practitioners developing 

lasting and trusting relationships with children and their families  

 To be effective, these arrangements must link to other strategic partnership work 

happening locally to support children and families. In Rotherham we have regular 

meetings that bring together the chairs of the children’s and adults’ safeguarding 

boards, the chair of the health and wellbeing board, the chair of the children and 

young people’s transformation board and the chair of the safer Rotherham 

partnership. These meetings, supported by the business units for the various 

boards, ensure that priorities and business plans are shared and aligned. 

5. Relevant agencies 

Relevant agencies are those organisations and agencies whose involvement the 

safeguarding partners consider is required to safeguard and promote the welfare of local 

children. Strong, effective multi-agency arrangements are ones that are responsive to 

local circumstances and engage the right people. For local arrangements to be effective, 

they will engage organisations and agencies that can work in a collaborative way to 

provide targeted support to children and families as appropriate. This approach requires 

flexibility to enable joint identification of, and response to, existing and emerging needs, 

and to agree priorities to improve outcomes for children.  Every agency is able to 

participate across the partnership safeguarding arrangements as can be seen in section 

8 and are aware of their responsibilities within the arrangements. The relevant agencies 

include all Educational Establishments, NHS Trusts, Private and Voluntary Sector 

providers of services in Rotherham.  

All applications to register a children’s home in the Rotherham local authority area must 

undertake a location assessment in accordance with the Children’s Homes (England) 

Regulation 2015. In addition, all children’s homes in the area will be required, as part of 

the local safeguarding assurance framework, to undertake a safeguarding self-

assessment once every 2 years.  

A comprehensive list of the relevant agencies can be found at Appendix 1.   

These agencies and organisations are statutorily required to act in accordance with 

these arrangements (Working Together 2018, Chapter 3, paragraph 19 and Children Act 

2004 section 16G).  

Page 22



8 
 

6. Structure  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                           Delivery Groups 

 

 

  

Chief Officer Group 

 

 

 Executive Group 

 

                   Wider Safeguarding Partnership 

& 

                   Education Safeguarding Forum 

 

Child Exploitation 

 

 

 

Practice Review Panel 

Exploitation 

 

 

 

Learning & Improvement 

 

 

 

Performance & Quality 

 

 

 

Independent 

Chair 

CDOP 

 

 

 

P
age 23



9 
 

7. How the Safeguarding Children Partnership will work  

The Chief Officer Group will meet twice annually to provide strategic oversight and will 

agree the local vision and priorities for safeguarding children in Rotherham. It will ensure 

that there are strategic links with other partnership boards in relation to safeguarding 

children and will be the mechanism for escalation of safeguarding issues or risks from 

the Executive Group and the Independent Chair. The Chief Officer Group will also agree 

the funding and resourcing arrangements for the partnership and will agree and publish 

reports, at least annually, on the effectiveness of local safeguarding arrangements. 

The Executive Group will meet every two months and will analyse emerging and current 

safeguarding issues to advise the Chief Officers on priorities. It will ensure that the local 

safeguarding arrangements are compliant with statutory guidance and meet local need, 

setting out the priorities within the Business Plan. The Executive Group will receive 

regular reports on the progress of the Business Plan, providing challenge to the Delivery 

Groups, and manage a risk log in relation to key aspects of safeguarding, overseeing 

escalations and managing dispute resolution. It will ensure that the Delivery Groups are 

supported by the required partnership representation and will set and monitor the budget 

in accordance with the business plan. 

The Delivery Groups will each meet at a frequency needed to deliver the objectives in 

the business plan and this, along with their responsibilities, will be set out in their 

respective terms of reference. Each Delivery Group will develop a work plan aligned to 

the Business Plan and will report to the Executive Group on progress, highlighting key 

achievements, risks or issues. The frequency of reporting will be determined by the 

Executive Group. The Delivery Groups will need to work closely with one another and 

will, if the need arises, initiate task and finish groups which draw on expertise from 

across the partnership. 

The Wider Partnership will meet 3 times annually as a minimum. It will operate on a 

conference or workshop style in order to fully engage the wider partnership in 

Rotherham, taking account of different perspectives on key priorities and emerging 

issues. Participation of agencies will be proactive and tailored to particular themes or 

issues and organisations from across the Wider Partnership will be encouraged to bring 

their knowledge and expertise to both these meetings and also to participate in relevant 

Delivery Groups. 

 

Page 24



10 
 

The Education Safeguarding Forum will meet on a termly basis. It is a forum where 

safeguarding leads from schools, early years and other educational settings can engage 

in topical discussion and information sharing in relation to statutory safeguarding 

responsibilities, key priorities and emerging themes. It is also an opportunity to listen to 

an educational perspective on safeguarding issues within the system and an opportunity 

to disseminate key messages and best practice. Risks and issues will be reported to the 

Executive Group and the relevant Delivery Groups. 

 

 
 

Page 25



11 
 

8. Safeguarding Children Partnership membership and 

responsibilities 

 

 

Chief Officer Group: Frequency x 2 annually 

 

 

Membership 

 

 

Key Responsibilities 

Independent Chair 

Chief Executive (Rotherham 
Metropolitan Borough Council) 

Chief Officer (NHS Rotherham 
Clinical Commissioning Group) 

Assistant Chief Constable  
(South Yorkshire Police) 

Lead Member for Children’s 
Services (Participating 
Observer) Rotherham 
Metropolitan Borough Council 

Representative from Office of 
South Yorkshire Police and 
Crime Commissioner (for 
budget items) 

Others in attendance as 
required 

 

 Approves the local safeguarding arrangements to meet 
statutory requirements and local need. 

 Approves the local vision and priorities for safeguarding 
children. 

 Is accountable for the effectiveness of the arrangements in 
the local area. 

 Approves the funding and resourcing arrangements for the 
safeguarding partnership. 

 Ensures strategic link with other partnership boards in 
relation to safeguarding children. 

 Mechanism for escalation and resolution of relevant issues 
from Executive Group/Independent Chair. 

 Approves and publishes reports, at least annually, on the 
effectiveness of local safeguarding arrangements. 

 The Chief Officer Group will meet twice annually. 

 The Independent Chair will chair the Chief Officer Group. 

Should the lead representatives delegate their functions they 
remain accountable for any actions or decisions taken on behalf 
of their agency. If delegated, it is the responsibility of the lead 
representative to identify and nominate a senior officer in their 
agency to have responsibility and authority for ensuring full 
participation with these arrangements.  

 

 

 

Page 26



12 
 

 

 

Executive Group: Frequency – once every 2 months 

 

Membership 

 

 

Key Responsibilities 

Independent Chair 

Director of Children’s Services 
(Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council)   

Chief Nurse (Rotherham 
Clinical Commissioning Group) 

Chief Superintendent - District 
Commander (South Yorkshire 
Police) 

Chief Nurse (The Rotherham 
Foundation NHS Trust) 

Chief Nurse (Rotherham 
Doncaster and South Humber 
NHS Trust) 

Assistant Director, 
Safeguarding (Rotherham 
Metropolitan Borough Council)             

Designated Nurse – Nurse 
Consultant (Rotherham 
Clinical Commissioning Group) 

Business Manager (Advisor)            

Others in attendance as 
required 

 Analyse emerging and current safeguarding issues to 
advise Chief Officers on priorities. 

 Ensure that the local safeguarding arrangements are 
compliant with statutory guidance and meet local need – 
sets the local vision and priorities. 

 Receives reports on the progress of the business plan and 
its impact, issues of concern and new and emerging issues 

 Manages a risk log in relation to key aspects of 
safeguarding and oversees escalation and dispute 
resolution 

 Develops and ensures the delivery of the safeguarding 
partnership business plan 

 Develops and oversees the production of a public report, at 
least annually 

 Ensures delivery groups are supported by the required 
partnership representation 

 Provides detailed monitoring and challenge of the delivery 
groups activity against the objectives in the business plan 

 Receives updates from and has a mechanism to raise 
issues with the local Channel Panel, MAPPA Board, Local 
Family Justice Board. 

 Sets and monitors the budget in accordance with the 
business plan 

Should the lead representatives delegate their functions they 
remain accountable for any actions or decisions taken on behalf 
of their agency. If delegated, it is the responsibility of the lead 
representative to identify and nominate a senior officer in their 
agency to have responsibility and authority for ensuring full 
participation with these arrangements.  

 

 

Page 27



13 
 

  

 

Delivery Groups: Frequency (see below) 

 

Membership 

 

Key Responsibilities 

 

Membership and frequency 
of meeting of each Delivery 
Group is defined in its Terms 
of Reference and is drawn 
from the three safeguarding 
partners and across the wider 
partnership 

Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel (monthly) 

 Consideration of  Serious Safeguarding Cases (Rapid 
Reviews) and recommendation to Independent Chair 
Assurance Group for Local Safeguarding Practice  
Reviews 

 Development of Recommendations and Action Plans  
arising from cases 

 

Performance and Quality Delivery Group (6 weekly) 

Multi-Agency Auditing of safeguarding practice. 

 Development of partnership Performance Management             
Framework and challenge within the partnership. 

 Safeguarding Assurance for organisations S11, S175  
(schools), Voluntary & Com Sector safeguarding self-
assessment. 

 Receive findings from cases reviewed at the Practice            
Standards Group. 

 

Child Exploitation Delivery Group  (quarterly) 

Development of responses to and review the effectiveness of 
partnership working in relation to: 

 Child Sexual Exploitation 

 Missing Children 

  Child Criminal Exploitation 

  Trafficking/Modern Slavery 
 

Learning and Improvement Delivery Group (quarterly) 

 Audit  and Review Action Plan(s) Implementation 

 Multi-Agency Safeguarding Policies and Procedures 

 Development and evaluation of Safeguarding Training  

 Website and Newsletters, Safeguarding Awareness 
Week 

 

Page 28



14 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  
Schedule - Delivery Groups Reporting to the Executive Group 

 

February April June August October December 

 
Performance & 
Quality Delivery 
Group 
 

   
  

  
 D

E
L

IV
E

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 C

H
A

IR
S

 M
E

E
T

  

  
  

  
 W

IT
H

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 G
R

O
U

P
 

 
 

 
  

 
Learning & 
Improvement 
Delivery Group 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Child 
Exploitation 
Delivery Group 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Child Practice 
Review Panel 
 

     

 
Child Death 
Overview Panel 
 

  
 

(Annual 
Report) 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



15 
 

 

Wider Safeguarding Partnership – Frequency x 3 annually 

 

Membership 

 

Key Responsibilities 

Core Membership:  

Independent Chair 

Children and Young Peoples 
Services 

South Yorkshire Police 

Rotherham Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

The Rotherham NHS 
Foundation Trust                               

RDaSH NHS Foundation Trust 

Named Safeguarding 
Professionals                           

Business Manager 

 

Relevant Agencies:  

National Probation Service 

Community Rehabilitation 
Company                              
CAFCASS 

South Yorkshire Fire & Rescue 

Colleges and Training 
Providers 

RMBC Adult Services  
 

Voluntary & Community Sector                      
Commissioned services 

Children’s homes in local area            

 

 Provides wider partnership engagement, perspective and 
challenge on the key priorities emerging issues and the 
business plan 

 Participation in Delivery Groups as appropriate to the role of 
the organisation and needs of the delivery group 

 Ensure wide dissemination of safeguarding issues and key 
messages across the borough 

 Participation in meetings which focus on a particular theme 
or issue 

 Meetings have a workshop/conference style rather than 
formal board  

 

The wider safeguarding partnership will be flexible and inclusive 

- for example being responsive to themed meetings by inviting a 

wider range of organisations and extending invites to members 

of delivery groups. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Education Safeguarding Forum – Frequency one per school term 

All Schools and Academies 

Pupil Referral Units  

Special Schools  

Early Years settings                                    

Colleges 

 Engagement with the Safeguarding Partnership: 

 Statutory Safeguarding responsibilities 

 Emerging themes and priorities 

 Dissemination of key messages and best practice 

 Issues and challenges fed back to Executive Group 

Page 30



16 
 

9. Independent scrutiny 

The role of independent scrutiny, provided by an independent chairperson, will provide 

assurance in judging the effectiveness of multi-agency arrangements to safeguard and 

promote the welfare of all children in Rotherham, including arrangements to identify and 

review serious child safeguarding cases. This will be part of a wider system which includes 

the independent inspectorates’ single assessment of the individual safeguarding partners, 

Joint Targeted Area Inspections (JTAIs) and Peer Review activity across the region. 

Safeguarding partners will ensure that the scrutineer is objective, acts as a constructive 

critical friend and promotes reflection to drive continuous improvement. The independent 

chair will consider how effectively the arrangements are working for children and families as 

well as for practitioners, and how well the safeguarding partners are providing strong 

leadership.  

Key responsibilities of the Independent Chair: 

 Agree with the safeguarding partners how effectively the arrangements are working 

for children and families as well as for practitioners, and how well the safeguarding 

partners are providing strong leadership.  

 Scrutinise the work of the delivery groups and the progress of the business plan. 

 Scrutinise the Annual Report developed by the safeguarding partners. 

 Act objectively as a critical friend to promote reflection and drive continuous 

improvement. 

 Lead challenge sessions in relation to organisations’ safeguarding children 

arrangements. 

 Have access to and is sighted on relevant (single and multi-agency) safeguarding 

performance data and quality assurance information to effectively challenge practice 

and across the partnership to improve outcomes for children. 

 Have an influencing role within and across the partnership with regard to multi-

agency practice and outcomes for children. 

 Participate in reviews by Inspectorates when required, including JTAI’s. Holds 

partners to account for Improvement Plans (including attendance at Improvement 

Boards) arising from Inspection and Peer Review activity.  

Page 31



17 
 

 Be alerted to serious safeguarding cases, incidences of whistleblowing relating to 

safeguarding matters and act as a point of escalation when safeguarding partners 

are unable to find a resolution within the partnership. 

 Seek assurance and scrutinises decision making in relation to Serious Child 

Safeguarding Cases. 

 Have a line of sight to frontline practice and outcomes for children – where 

appropriate is able to observe practice, engage with practitioners, children and their 

families with regard to their experience of the safeguarding system. 

 Communicate with external local/regional/national organisations and governmental 

departments where appropriate in relation to safeguarding matters impacting on 

partnership working and outcomes for children. 

 Engage with community groups or community representatives in matters relating to 

safeguarding children. 

 Chair the Chief Officer Group of the safeguarding partners. 

 Chair the Executive Group of the safeguarding partnership. 

 Chair / facilitate wider safeguarding partnership meetings. 

 Meet with chairs of other Partnership Boards (SAB, SRP, and HWbB). 

Meet with Leaders and Officers relating to specific safeguarding issues across the 

partnership. Should the Independent Chair be unavailable, chief officers will nominate the 

most appropriate partner representative to fulfil the Chair’s role.  

 

10. Multi-agency threshold guidance for help and protection of 

children 

The development of a common understanding of language across a partnership is 

important to enable services and practitioners to be clear and unambiguous about what 

the risks and needs are for a child. This helps practitioners understand the differences 

between a child and their family needing help and what constitutes harm, ensuring that 

they receive the right level of support at the right time. This is especially important for 

those working in universal services, particularly schools and other education settings, who 

Page 32



18 
 

have regular contact with children and their families and can offer an appropriate Early 

Help response when problems arise. 

It is, therefore, important that there are clear criteria amongst all organisations and agencies 

working with children and families in Rotherham for taking action and providing help across 

the full continuum of need. This will ensure that services are commissioned effectively and 

that the right help is on offer dependent on the individual needs of each child.  

The safeguarding partners have agreed with their relevant agencies the levels for the 

different types of assessment and services to be commissioned and delivered. A threshold 

document and continuum of need guidance, which sets out the local criteria for action, will 

be published as part of the online safeguarding children procedures and promoted to all 

partners.  It will be transparent, accessible and easily understood.  

This will include: 

 The process for the early help assessment and the type and level of early help 

services to be provided.  

 The criteria, including the level of need, for when a case should be referred to local 

authority children’s social care for assessment and for statutory services under:  

o Section 17 of the Children Act 1989 (children in need).  

o Section 47 of the Children Act 1989 (reasonable cause to suspect a child 

is suffering or likely to suffer significant harm).  

o Section 31 of the Children Act 1989 (care and supervision orders).  

o Section 20 of the Children Act 1989 (duty to accommodate a child). 

 Clear procedures and processes for cases relating to: 

 

o The abuse, neglect and exploitation of children.  

o Children managed within the youth secure estate.  

o Children with disabilities. 

 

 

Page 33



19 
 

11. Dispute resolution, escalation and whistleblowing 

Working together effectively to safeguard and promote the welfare of children is essential to 

achieving good outcomes for children and young people in Rotherham. On occasion, there 

will inevitably be some areas of disagreement or concern between professionals, agencies 

or organisations in relation to safeguarding responsibilities, whether this is in relation to the 

decisions or actions of a single agency or organisation or within a partnership context. 

Therefore, in order to promote and maintain effective multi agency working, it is vital that 

these concerns and disagreements are raised and discussed in a timely, open and 

transparent manner and that appropriate resolution is sought; and escalated to achieve this 

if necessary. Wherever possible, all efforts should be made to resolve these issues at the 

lowest possible level between professionals, agencies and organisations, as it is at this level 

that the child and their family's circumstances are known best. 

For individual children’s circumstances refer to the multi-agency dispute resolution protocol 

which provides guidance and a process for escalation and resolution of concerns. Ultimately 

if this does not achieve a satisfactory resolution then the Executive Group and Independent 

Chair should be notified. 

Where there are issues which appear to be more systemic in nature then escalation should 

be made to the Safeguarding Partnership Executive Group and Independent Chair. If an 

issue cannot be resolved at the Executive Group, the Independent Chair with bring Chief 

Officers together in order to reach resolution. 

The Independent Chair will arbitrate at the Chief Officer Group if an issue cannot be 

resolved. A log of all escalations and their outcomes will be managed by the Executive 

Group and reported into the Chief Officer Group and within the Safeguarding Partners 

annual report. 

Each individual organisation or agency must have whistleblowing procedures and guidance 

available and accessible to their workforce, including volunteers. Further guidance on 

whistleblowing for organisations within the safeguarding partnership can also be found here. 

This sets out the definition, legal requirements and what to do. Whilst the guidance provides 

a number of pathways for whistleblowing, if it relates to the safeguarding of children in 

Rotherham, a whistle blower may also wish to contact the Independent Chair of the 

Safeguarding Partnership. 

 

Page 34

https://rotherhamscb.proceduresonline.com/chapters/p_practice_resolution.html?zoom_highlight=resolution
https://rotherhamscb.proceduresonline.com/chapters/p_whistleblowing.html?zoom_highlight=whistle


20 
 

 

12. Safeguarding Effectiveness and Assurance 

The Performance and Quality Delivery Group is the lead Delivery Group for providing 

oversight and challenge in relation to safeguarding effectiveness in Rotherham.  

 

12.1    Partner organisations’ safeguarding self-assessment 

We will continue with the regular safeguarding assurance reviews of 

organisations safeguarding arrangements across the partnership. This is 

undertaken through a self-assessment by each organisation, followed by a peer 

challenge drawn from across the partnership and led by the Independent Chair. 

The safeguarding self-assessment standards are both inclusive and applicable to 

both safeguarding children and adults and are undertaken jointly with the 

Rotherham Safeguarding Adults Board. 

12.2    Performance Management Framework 

The safeguarding Performance Management Framework is developed on a 

quarterly basis. It includes data and intelligence from across the partnership in 

relation to practice and outcomes for children across the continuum of need, 

including early help. It provides a holistic view of the effectiveness of partnership 

working, including single agency practice and findings from inspections, and a 

focal point for partnership challenge. Key trends, concerns or messages are 

communicated from the Delivery Group to the Executive Group. 

12.3    Multi-Agency Auditing 

Auditing is one of the ways that the effectiveness of multi-agency practice and 

outcomes for children can be measured. It is a way of locating good practice in 

addition to areas for improvement and can provide a level of assurance to the 

way that partners are working together to safeguard children.  

The Performance and Quality Delivery Group will develop an annual audit 

schedule which reflects the priorities of the safeguarding partnership and any 

emerging issues. Audits developed and agreed within the partnership and 

organisations are expected to allocate the required resource to undertake audit 

work within the timescales agreed in the schedule.  Recommendations are 

developed from the findings of audits and transferred to the Learning and 

Page 35



21 
 

Improvement Delivery Group for implementation. Periodically re-audits will be 

undertaken to establish whether the necessary improvements have been 

implemented. 

 

13. Listening to the voice of children and families 

Rotherham partners have made a commitment to being a child friendly borough and through 

our new multi-agency arrangements we will build on the engagement with children and 

young people that is already in place. We will ensure that children in Rotherham have a 

strong voice in making sure that all partners understand what it is like to be a child or young 

person in Rotherham and what needs to happen to make their childhood as safe as 

possible.  Their voice will influence decisions at a strategic, operational and individual level. 

Safeguarding Partners will continue to work with the following groups: 

 Youth Cabinet 

 LAC Council 

 Different but Equal Board 

 Young Inspectors 

Safeguarding Partners will receive reports on the following services: 

 Child Protection Advocacy Service (Barnardo’s) 

 Rights to Rights (LAC children’s rights service) 

 Rotherham Young Carers service 

All the quality assurance mechanisms of the partnership, the performance framework, case 

audits, agency audits and practice reviews will monitor the ways in which children’s views 

are taken into account by services. We will seek increase the ways in which all services 

listen to the views of the children they are working with through routine feedback, 

consultation events with young people on specific safeguarding issues and through lifestyle 

surveys. 

The aims of our work with young people will be to shape services based on their 

experiences, to increase their understanding of safeguarding issues and how to keep 

Page 36



22 
 

themselves safe, but most importantly to understand how we can shape the environment 

and communities around children to enable them to be safe. 

 

14. Inter-agency learning and development 

There should be a culture of continuous learning and improvement across the organisations 

that work together to safeguard and promote the welfare of children, so as to identify what 

works and what promotes good practice; and where improvements need to be made. 

In order to do this the Rotherham Safeguarding Children Partnership will utilise a shared 

local learning and improvement framework across all those local organisations working with 

children and families. This local framework describes the way that professionals and 

organisations providing services to children and their families need to reflect on the quality of 

their services, outcomes for children and learn from their own practice and that of others. It 

explains the requirements for an integrated local learning and improvement framework and 

the principles to be used when undertaking Child Practice Reviews, as well as other forms of 

reviews, audits and quality assurance activity. 

The Learning and Improvement Delivery Group is the lead delivery group for taking learning 

forward from this work and where necessary commissioning inter-agency training. 

On an annual basis the Learning and Improvement Delivery Group will develop and publish 

a learning and development prospectus for inter-agency safeguarding training and workforce 

development. This will utilise a partnership safeguarding competency framework to enable 

all organisations to establish what the learning needs are in relation to their workforce. 

The prospectus for each year will be based on the priorities of the safeguarding partnership 

and is flexible and responsive to emerging issues which have been highlighted at any point 

during the year. Training will be commissioned and delivered collaboratively with other 

partnership boards, for example, the Safer Rotherham Partnership in relation to domestic 

abuse. 

Inter-agency training is mostly delivered from safeguarding leads within the partnership,        

however, some specialist training will be commissioned and from external provider where       

a need is identified and this is a priority. Training is at no cost to any safeguarding partner 

organisation within Rotherham. 

Page 37



23 
 

Every participant is required to provide feedback in relation to the training course received 

and then as a follow up so that all learning activity can be monitored for impact on practice 

and outcomes for children.  

 

15. Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews 

The Safeguarding Practice Review Panel is the lead delivery group for coordinating local 

Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews. 

The purpose of reviews of serious child safeguarding cases, at both local and national level, 

is to identify improvements to be made to safeguard and promote the welfare of children. 

Understanding whether there are systemic issues, and whether and how policy and practice 

need to change, is critical to the system being dynamic and self-improving. Reviews should 

seek to prevent or reduce the risk of recurrence of similar incidents. They are not conducted 

to hold individuals, organisations or agencies to account, as there are other processes for 

that purpose.  

The responsibility for how the system learns the lessons from serious child safeguarding 

incidents lies at a national level with the Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel (the 

National Panel) and at local level with the Rotherham safeguarding partners.  

The National Panel is responsible for identifying and overseeing the review of serious child 

safeguarding cases which, in its view, raise issues that are complex or of national 

importance. The National Panel should also maintain oversight of the system of national and 

local reviews and how effectively it is operating.  

Locally, the Rotherham safeguarding partners will make arrangements to identify and review 

serious child safeguarding cases which, in their view, raise issues of importance in relation 

to their area. We will commission and oversee the review of those cases, where they 

consider it appropriate for a review to be undertaken.  

Serious child safeguarding cases are those in which:  

 abuse or neglect of a child is known or suspected and  

 the child has died or been seriously harmed  

Serious harm includes (but is not limited to) serious and/or long-term impairment of a child’s 

mental health or intellectual, emotional, social or behavioural development. It should also 

Page 38



24 
 

cover impairment of physical health. This is not an exhaustive list. When making decisions, 

judgment should be exercised in cases where impairment is likely to be long-term, even if 

this is not immediately certain. Even if a child recovers, including from a one-off incident, 

serious harm may still have occurred.  

16C (1) of the Children Act 2004 (as amended by the Children and Social Work Act 

2017) states: 

Where a local authority in England knows or suspects that a child has been abused or 

neglected, the local authority must notify the Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel 

if: 

(a) the child dies or is seriously harmed in the local authority’s area, or  

(b) While normally resident in the local authority’s area, the child dies or is seriously  

     harmed outside England. 

 

Rotherham local authority will notify any event that meets the above criteria to the National 

Panel. They should do so within five working days of becoming aware that the incident has 

occurred. The local authority should also report the event to the safeguarding partners in 

their area (and in other areas if appropriate) within five working days.  

Rotherham local authority must also notify the Secretary of State and Ofsted where a looked 

after child has died, whether or not abuse or neglect is known or suspected.  

The duty to notify events to the Panel rests with the local authority. Others who have 

functions relating to children should inform the safeguarding partners of any incident which 

they think should be considered for a child safeguarding practice review.  

 

The criteria which the Rotherham safeguarding partners will take into account include 

whether the case:  

 Highlights or may highlight improvements needed to safeguard and promote the 

welfare of children, including where those improvements have been previously 

identified  

 Highlights or may highlight recurrent themes in the safeguarding and promotion of the 

welfare of children  

Page 39



25 
 

 Highlights or may highlight concerns regarding two or more organisations or agencies 

working together effectively to safeguard and promote the welfare of children  

 Is one which the child safeguarding practice review panel have considered and 

concluded a local review may be more appropriate  

 

Rotherham Safeguarding partners will also have regard to the following 

circumstances:  

 Where the safeguarding partners have cause for concern about the actions of a 

single agency  

 Where there has been no agency involvement and this gives the safeguarding 

partners cause for concern  

 Where more than one local authority, police area or clinical commissioning group is 

involved, including in cases where families have moved around  

 Where the case may raise issues relating to safeguarding or promoting the welfare of 

children in institutional settings 

 

The Rotherham Safeguarding Partners will take account of the findings from local reviews 

and from all national reviews, with a view to considering how identified improvements should 

be implemented locally, including the way in which organisations and agencies work 

together to safeguard and promote the welfare of children. The safeguarding partners will 

highlight findings from reviews with relevant parties locally and will regularly audit progress 

on the implementation of recommended improvements in conjunction with the other delivery 

groups. Improvement will be sustained through regular monitoring and follow up of actions 

so that the findings from these reviews make a real impact on improving outcomes for 

children.  

When commissioning a reviewer for the report the Rotherham Safeguarding Partners will 

consider whether the reviewer has the following:  

 Professional knowledge, understanding and practice relevant to local child 

safeguarding practice reviews, including the ability to engage both with practitioners  

and children and families  

Page 40



26 
 

 Knowledge and understanding of research relevant to children’s safeguarding issues  

 Ability to recognise the complex circumstances in which practitioners work together to 

safeguard children  

 Ability to understand practice from the viewpoint of the individuals, organisations or  

agencies involved at the time rather than using hindsight  

 Ability to communicate findings effectively  

 Whether the reviewer has any real or perceived conflict of interest  

When compiling and preparing to publish the report, the safeguarding partners will consider 

carefully how best to manage the impact of the publication on children, family members, 

practitioners and others closely affected by the case. The safeguarding partners will ensure 

that reports are written in such a way so that what is published avoids harming the welfare of 

any children or vulnerable adults involved in the case. The report will submitted to the 

National Panel and Ofsted 7 working days prior to the publication of the report on the 

Rotherham Safeguarding Partners website. 

 

15.1 Transitional arrangements for Serious Case Reviews (SCR) 

 

Rotherham LSCB will continue to carry out all of its statutory functions, including 

commissioning SCRs where the criteria are met, until the point at which safeguarding 

partner arrangements begin to operate in Rotherham. Rotherham LSCB will set out any 

decisions on SCRs which are outstanding at the time of handover to the new arrangements. 

Where an SCR has not been completed and/or published at the point the new safeguarding 

partner arrangements begin to operate, for example, if they have only recently been 

commissioned, Rotherham LSCB will seek to complete and publish the SCR within six 

months of the date of the decision to initiate a review, but has a maximum of 12 months to 

do so and can function as a LSCB that purpose only. The latest date for completion and 

publication of an SCR is 29 September 2020. In this 12 month grace period the LSCB will 

not commission any further SCRs or continue with any other former activities.  

Information relating to any incidents where decisions on SCRs have not been taken will be 

passed to the safeguarding partners. The LSCB will also pass on to safeguarding partners 

Page 41



27 
 

any information relating to learning arising from such SCRs (including where these are still in 

progress), so that the safeguarding partners can consider follow-up actions as appropriate. 

During the grace period, LSCBs may not commission new SCRs, even if the incident 

occurred before the start of the grace period, or carry out any other former functions.  

If an SCR is not completed or not published by the end of the grace period, the LSCB will 

pass the complete but unpublished SCR or where it has not been completed, all information 

relating to the review (which will include learning arising from it), to the safeguarding 

partners, the Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel and the DfE. 

In considering such cases, the safeguarding partners will take into account any decision 

previously made by the LSCB regarding whether or not an SCR should be initiated. 

Particularly (though not exclusively) if further information comes to light about a case which 

was notified before the date of transition, they may decide to commission a local review, 

even if the former LSCB has previously determined not to initiate an SCR of the same 

incident. The safeguarding partners will determine how to make use of information from 

SCRs which remain incomplete (or complete but unpublished) at the end of the grace period. 

The safeguarding partners may conclude, for example, that the information gathered during 

the course of the incomplete or unpublished SCR gives rise to the need for a local review. 

They may therefore decide to appoint a reviewer to undertake a local review, if they decide 

this is appropriate. The reviewer will be given access to the information from the incomplete 

SCR for use as appropriate. 

The safeguarding partners are not required to publish completed but unpublished SCRs. 

However, they may do so, if they agree this is appropriate. In the interests of clarity, they 

should make clear that the review was commissioned and approved by the former LSCB.  

 

16. Review of Partnership Safeguarding Arrangements 

The partnership will, through the Executive Group, carry out a brief review six months after 

the new arrangements are implemented. There will be a full review after one year and 

annually thereafter which will include the wider safeguarding partnership and education 

forum.  

 

 

Page 42



28 
 

17. Reporting    

In order to bring transparency for children, families and all practitioners about the activity 

undertaken, the Rotherham safeguarding partners will publish a report annually. The report 

will set out what we have done as a result of the arrangements, including on child 

safeguarding practice reviews, and how effective these arrangements have been in practice.  

 

In addition the report will include: 

 Evidence of the impact of the work of the safeguarding partners and relevant 

agencies, including training, on outcomes for children and families from early help to 

looked-after children and care leavers  

 An analysis of any areas where there has been little or no evidence of progress on 

our agreed priorities  

 A record of decisions and actions taken by the partners in the report’s period (or 

planned to be taken) to implement the recommendations of any local and national 

child safeguarding practice reviews, including any resulting improvements  

 Ways in which the we have sought and utilised feedback from children and families to 

inform their work and influence service provision  

 Evidence of the impact of the work of the safeguarding partners and relevant 

agencies, including training, on outcomes for children and families from early help to 

looked-after children and care leavers  

 Any updates to the published arrangements and the proposed timescale for 

implementation 

The report will be published on the Rotherham Safeguarding Partners website. 

The report will be submitted to other key local partnerships including the Health and Well-

being Board, Safer Rotherham Partnership and the Children and Young Peoples 

Transformation Board. The report will also be submitted to the Council’s Improving Lives 

Select Commission for scrutiny and a copy of the published report will be sent to the Child 

Safeguarding Practice Review Panel and the What Works Centre for Children’s Social Care 

within seven days of being published. 

 

 

Page 43



29 
 

18. Funding and resourcing 

Working in partnership means that organisations and agencies should collaborate on how 

they will fund their arrangements. The three safeguarding partners and relevant agencies in 

Rotherham should make payments towards expenditure incurred in conjunction with local 

multi-agency arrangements for safeguarding and promoting welfare of children. The funding 

will be transparent to children and families in Rotherham, and sufficient to cover all elements 

of the arrangements, including the cost of local child safeguarding practice reviews. 

The safeguarding partners will agree the level of funding secured from each partner, which 

should be equitable and proportionate, and any contributions from each relevant agency, to 

support the local arrangements. The funding agreement and any decisions will be the 

responsibility of the Chief Officer Group with a representative of the South Yorkshire Police 

and Crime Commissioners office for that purpose. It has been agreed that for the 2019-20 

financial year, the joint funding arrangements will continue on the same basis as for 2018-19 

and be reviewed by the partners in readiness for 2020-21. 

Organisations and agencies will also be expected to ensure that they support the work of the 

delivery groups and any task and finish groups through appropriate attendance of their staff 

required to support the work of the safeguarding partners.  In addition partners will, from time 

to time, be asked to contribute to any conferences or events relevant to the safeguarding 

partnership and offer meeting rooms to facilitate multi-agency meetings. 

 

19. Information Sharing 

Effective information sharing underpins partnership working and is a vital element of both 

early intervention and safeguarding. Research and experience have shown repeatedly that 

keeping children safe from harm requires practitioners and others to share information 

about: 

 A child’s health and development and any exposure to possible harm. 

 A parent who may need help, or may not be able to care for a child adequately or 

safely; and  

 Those who may pose a risk of harm to a child. 

The Rotherham multi-agency Safeguarding Children Procedures which can be found here 

contain detailed guidance, which must be followed, in relation to information sharing 

including: 

Page 44



30 
 

 The General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) and the Data Protection Act 2018 

 The Seven Golden rules for Information Sharing 

 Confidentiality and Consent 

 National Guidance on Information Sharing 

 

20. Management of Data  

Prior to the new safeguarding arrangements in Rotherham being implemented, the LSCB will 

ensure that all historical records relating to the LSCB and its predecessor, the Area Child 

Protection Committee, are secure and are transferred to the new safeguarding partnership 

arrangements, including all information held electronically and in hard copy (including the 

records of information retained at the Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council, records 

management centre). This will ensure that any historical records that may be appropriate for 

the National Independent Inquiry into Sexual Abuse are kept securely and are traceable. The 

new safeguarding arrangements will adhere to the Data Protection Act 2018 and the General 

Data Protection Regulations. 

The Rotherham Multi-Agency Arrangements for Safeguarding Children is a statutory body in 

its own right, and is not a public authority for the purposes of the Freedom of Information Act 

2000. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



31 
 

21. Appendix 1:   Relevant Agencies 

 

Education and childcare 

 The proprietor of an Academy school within the meaning given by section 1A of the 

Academies Act 2010. 

 The proprietor of a 16-19 Academy within the meaning given by section 1B of the 

Academies Act 2010. 

 The proprietor of an alternative provision Academy within the meaning given by 

section 1C of the Academies Act 2010. 

 The governing body of a maintained school within the meaning given by section 20(7) 

of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998. 

 The governing body of a maintained nursery school within the meaning given by 

section 22(9) of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998. 

 The governing body of a pupil referral unit within the meaning given by section 19(2) 

of the Education Act 1996. 

 The proprietor of an independent educational institution registered under section 

95(1) of the Education and Skills Act 2008. 

 The proprietor of a school approved under section 342 of the Education Act 1996. 

 The proprietor of a Special post-16 institution within the meaning given by section 

83(2) of the Children and Families Act 2014. 

 The governing body of an institution within the further education sector within the 

meaning given by section 91(3) of the Further and Higher Education Act 1992. 

 The governing body of an English higher education provider within the meaning of 

section 83 of the Higher Education and Research Act 2017. 

 Any provider of education or training— 

(a) to which Chapter 3 of Part 8 of the Education and Inspections Act 

2006(c), and 

Page 46



32 
 

(b) In respect of which funding is provided by, or under arrangements  

           made by, the Secretary of State. 

 A person registered under Chapter 2, 2A, 3 or 3A of Part 3 of the Childcare Act 2006. 

 The provider of a children’s centre within the meaning given by section 5A (4) of the            

Childcare Act 2006. 

 

The above includes all Schools and Academies, Pupil Referral Units, Special 

Schools, Early Years Settings, Colleges and Alternative Provision. 

 

Health and Social Care 

 The National Health Service Commissioning Board (known as NHS England) as 

established under section 1H (1) of the National Health Service Act 2006. 

 An NHS trust established under section 25 of the National Health Service Act 2006: 

(The Rotherham Foundation NHS Trust, Rotherham Doncaster and South 

Humber NHS Foundation Trust) 

 An NHS foundation trust within the meaning given by section 30 of the National 

Health Service Act 2006. 

 The registered provider of an adoption support agency within the meaning given by 

section 8(1) of the Adoption and Children Act 2002. 

 The registered provider of a registered adoption society within the meaning given by 

section 2 of the Adoption and Children Act 2002. 

 A registered provider of a fostering agency within the meaning given by section 4 of 

the Care Standards Act 2000. 

 A registered provider of a children’s home within the meaning given by section 1 of 

the Care Standards Act 2000. (Independent Children’s Homes named here) 

 A registered provider of residential family centre within the meaning given by section 

4(2) of the Care Standards Act 2000. 

Page 47



33 
 

 The registered provider of a residential holiday schemes for disabled children within 

the meaning given by regulation 2(1) of the Residential Holiday Schemes for 

Disabled Children (England) Regulations 2013/1394(b). (Liberty House). 

 

Criminal Justice 

 The Children and Family Court Advisory and Support Service (Cafcass) as 

established under section 11 of the Criminal Justice and Court Services Act 2000. 

 Providers of probation services as defined by section 3(6) of the Offender 

Management Act 2007. 

 Youth offending teams as established under section 39 of the Crime and Disorder 

Act 1998.  

 

(Rotherham does not have a Youth Offending Institute with the borough. Children 

placed in such organisation out of borough will be monitored by the Youth Offending 

Service which will also secure assurance on the safeguarding policies and 

procedures of the Institute.) 

 

Police and Immigration 

 

 The British Transport Police as established under section 18(1) the Railways and 

Transport Safety Act 2003. 

 National Crime Agency 

 Any person or body for whom the Secretary of State must make arrangements for 

ensuring the discharge of functions under section 55 of the Borders Citizenship and 

Immigration Act 2009. 

 

Other agencies or organisations 

 Charities within the meaning given by section 1 of the Charities Act 2011  

Page 48



34 
 

 Religious Organisations as set out in regulation 34 of, and Schedule 3 to, the School 

Admissions (Admission Arrangements and Co-ordination of Admission 

Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2012 

 Admissions (Admission Arrangements and Co-ordination of Admission 

Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2012. 

 Any person or body involved in the provision, supervision or oversight of sport or 

leisure.  

 

The above includes all voluntary and community sector organisations, faith 

groups, youth groups, sports and leisure activities. 

 

 

Page 49



Public Report
Improving Lives Select Commission

Improving Lives Select Commission – 9 July 2019
Title: Improving Lives Select Commission draft work programme 2019/20
Is this a Key Decision and has it been included on the Forward Plan? 
No

Strategic Director Approving Submission of the Report
Assistant Chief Executive

Report Author(s)
Caroline Webb, Senior Adviser (Scrutiny and Member Development)
(01709) 822765 caroline.webb@rotherham.gov.uk

Ward(s) Affected
All

Summary
1.1 Members of the Improving Lives Select Committee held an informal work planning 

session on June 18, 2019 to consider which items to include in the commission’s work 
programme for the 2019/20 municipal year. 

1.2 Attached as  Appendix 1 is a draft work programme based on the outcomes of 
meeting. The programme has been informed by discussions with the Cabinet Member 
for Children and Young People’s Services; the Strategic Director and Link Officers.

1.3 Improving Lives Select Commission has prioritised its work programme with reference 
to the ‘PAPERS’ framework. This is as follows:

Public Interest: the concerns of local people should influence the issues chosen for 
scrutiny;
Ability to change: priority should be given to issues that the Committee can 
realistically influence;
Performance: priority should be given to the areas in which the Council and other 
agencies are not performing well;
Extent: priority should be given to issues that are relevant to all or large parts of the 
district;
Replication: work programmes must take account of what else is happening in the 
areas being considered to avoid duplication or wasted effort;
Statutory responsibility: where an issue is part of a statutory duty to scrutinise or 
hold to account (or the area under scrutiny is a statutory, high profile responsibility)

1.4 The Commission should be mindful of the timeliness of the matters within its work 
programme and ensure that it leaves sufficient flexibility to undertake any pre-decision 
scrutiny arising from matters in the Forward Plan of Key Decisions or be able to 
reprioritise should any items be referred to it from the Cabinet, OSMB or other 
sources. 

Page 50 Agenda Item 9

mailto:caroline.webb@rotherham.gov.uk


Recommendations:

1. That Members consider the work programme as outlined;

2. That updates are provided to each meeting of Improving Lives on the progress of the 
work programme and for further prioritisation as required.

List of Appendices Included
Draft work programme Improving Lives Select Committee

Background Papers
Nil

Consideration by any other Council Committee, Scrutiny or Advisory Panel
N/A

Council Approval Required
No

Exempt from the Press and Public
No

Page 51



Draft work programme – Improving Lives Select Commission 2019-20 Appendix 1

Meeting Date Agenda Item Purpose/ Outcomes
Date of meeting: 

11 June 2019

Deadline for papers: 

Friday 31 May (12 noon)

 Mr John Edwards, Regional Schools 
Commissioner (East Midlands and the 
Humber Region) 

 Rotherham Education Strategic 
Partnership (RESP) Update 

 Children & Young People’s Services 
(CYPS) 2018/2019 Year End 
Performance 

To discuss with the Regional Schools Commissioner the key challenges for 
Education in Rotherham

To provide an overview and update of progress in respect of the key areas 
for action identified within the RESP strategic plan.)
To provide a summary of performance under key themes for Children’s and 
Young Peoples Service at the end of the 2018/19 reporting year.

Date of meeting: 

9 July 2019
Deadline for papers: 

28 June at 12.00pm

 New Children’s Safeguarding 
Partnerships

 Missing from Home/Education (Update 
from Strategic Missing Group)

To seek assurance about the new safeguarding arrangement and readiness 
for implementation
To seek assurance that children missing (from Exclusions, Care, Home, 
Education) are being effectively safeguarded

Date of meeting: 

17 September 2019
Deadline for papers: 

6 September at 12.00pm

 Counter extremism in schools 

 Elective Home Education 
 
 Holiday hunger (Suggested review)

To understand steps being taken in schools to address counter extremism
To seek assurance that children who are elective home educated are being 
effectively safeguarded/educated
TO BEGIN SCOPE

Date of meeting: 

29 October 2019

Deadline for papers: 

18 October at 12.00pm  

Early Intervention
 Implementation of Early Help Strategy 

 Sustainability EH – funding 

 Youth Offending Service

To scrutinise the effectiveness of the Early Help offer and seek assurance 
that the implementation of the strategy is meeting milestones/measures
To scrutinise the effectiveness of Youth Offending initiatives particularly in 
context of concerns about criminal exploitation of young people

Date of meeting: 
 Safeguarding children’s annual report To scrutinise the local safeguarding arrangements (Children and Adults)

P
age 52



3 December 2019

Deadline for papers: 

22 November at 12.00pm  

 Safeguarding adults annual report

 School performance

 Send inspection/ peer review

To scrutinise annual school performance (unverified)
To scrutinise the outcomes from the SEND inspection and /or peer review

Date of meeting: 

14 January 2020

Deadline for papers: 

Friday 3 January 2020 at 
12.00pm  

 LAC sufficiency

 Directorate workforce strategy

 Court Procedures (Sub-Group TBC)

To scrutinise the implementation of the LAC sufficiency strategy
To receive an update 
To scrutinise if progress/milestones are being reached – follow on from 
earlier work

Date of meeting: 

3 March 2020
Deadline for papers: 

21 February 2020 at 
12.00pm  

 Send 

 Pause

 Early Help Social Care Pathways

To scrutinise the implementation of the SEND sufficiency strategy
To scrutinise outcomes from project to date
To scrutinise progress/implementation 

To Schedule:
 Early Help social Care Pathways: initial sub-group to seek assurance re process (initially July/August)
 Domestic Abuse 
 CSE – post abuse support (T&F review other authorities post abuse support to commence in June) 
 Child friendly borough update 
 Performance Sub-Group

P
age 53


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 11th June, 2019
	7 Rotherham Safeguarding Children Partnership: Multi-Agency Arrangements for Safeguarding Children
	Rotherham Safeguarding Children Partnership Appendix

	9 Improving Lives Work Programme 2019
	ILSC Draft Work Programme- For Discussion


